YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

CONTENTS

CONTENTO	Page
Independent auditors' report	1 - 3
Management's discussion and analysis	4 - 12
Basic financial statements:	
Government-wide financial statements:	10
Statement of net position	13
Statement of activities	14
Fund financial statements:	15
Balance sheet - governmental funds	15
Reconciliation of the balance sheet - governmental funds to the statement	16
of net position	16
Statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances -	17
governmental funds	17
Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures and changes	10
in fund balances - governmental funds to the statement of activities	18
Statement of net position - proprietary funds	19
Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in fund net position -	20
proprietary funds	20 21
Statement of cash flows - proprietary funds	
Statement of fiduciary net position	22
Statement of changes in fiduciary net position	23
Notes to financial statements	24 - 47
Required supplementary information:	
Schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances -	
budget and actual - general fund	48
Schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios -	
agent retirement plan (PSPRS)	49
Schedule of pension contributions	50
Schedule of funding progress - post-retirement health insurance subsidy -	
agent retirement plan (PSPRS)	51
Notes to required supplementary information	52 - 53
Notes to required supplementary information	
Supplementary information:	
Combining schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund	
balances - budget and actual - non-major special revenue funds	54
Report on internal control and on compliance:	
Independent auditors' report on internal control over financial reporting and on	
compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements	55 - 56
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards	57 - 63
Schedule of findings and responses	07 - 00



Independent Auditors' Report

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council Town of Huachuca City, Arizona

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Huachuca City, Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Basis for Qualified Opinion on Capital Assets

Because of the inadequacy of accounting records, we were unable to form an opinion regarding the amounts at which capital assets and accumulated depreciation are recorded in the accompanying government-wide financial statements at June 30, 2015 (stated at \$19,376,610 and \$8,261,754) or the amount of depreciation expense for the year then ended (stated at \$556,292).

Qualified Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matter discussed in the "Basis for Qualified Opinion on Capital Assets" paragraph, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Huachuca City, Arizona, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in note 1, in 2015 the Town adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement No. 68, *Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions*, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, *Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date*. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, schedule of changes in the net pension liability and related ratios, schedule of pension contributions, and schedule of funding progress - post-retirement health insurance subsidy, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Town's basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with *Government Auditing Standards*, we have also issued our report dated March 24, 2016, on our consideration of the Town's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the Town's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Beach Fleischman PC

Tucson, Arizona March 24, 2016 Management's Discussion and Analysis

TOWN OF HUACHUCA CITY, ARIZONA MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

As management of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona (Town), we offer readers of the Town's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial statements which follow the Management's Discussion and Analysis provide significant key financial highlights for 2014-2015 as follows.

- The Town's total net position of governmental activities decreased \$232,195 to \$4,905,671 and business-type activities decreased \$1,168,865 to \$8,790,128 representing 36% and 64% respectively, of the total net position of \$13,695,799.
- General revenues from governmental activities accounted for \$769,981 in revenue, or 41% of all revenues from governmental activities. Program specific revenues in the form of charges for services and grants and contributions accounted for \$1,122,482 or 59% of total governmental activities revenues. The Town had \$1.4 million of program revenues related to business-type activities.

• The Town had \$2.4 million in expenses related to governmental activities, a decrease of 2.7% from the prior fiscal year. The Town had \$2.1 million in expenses related to business-type activities, a decrease of 0.3% from the prior fiscal year.

• Among major funds, the General Fund had \$1.6 million in revenues, which primarily consisted of taxes and state shared revenues. The total expenditures of the General Fund were \$2.1 million. The General Fund's fund balance decreased from \$(394,173) to (\$903,816) due to less recurring annual revenue, especially in intergovernmental revenue, charges for service and sales taxes.

• Total net position of the enterprise funds decreased \$1,168,865. Operating expenses of \$2.1 million exceeded operating revenues of \$1.4 million.

 The Town adopted GASB No. 68 – Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, An Amendment of GASB No. 27 – where employers that participate in a defined benefit pension plan administered as a trust or equivalent arrangements are required to record the net pension liability, pension expense, and deferred outflows/deferred inflows of resources related to pensions. The Town also adopted GASB No. 71 – Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date, An Amendment to GASB No. 68 – the objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68. The issue relates to amounts associated with contributions, if any, made by an employer to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government's beginning net pension liability. • With help from the Department of the Army, the Town has built a new wastewater pond, outside the floodplain area, with a connecting pipe to the Fort Huachuca wastewater treatment plant for direct recharge of the Town's wastewater. This is a win/win situation for the Town, Fort Huachuca and the environment. The Town gets its waste water recharged and Fort Huachuca gets effluent to dispose in the Babocomari River, a major tributary to the slow moving San Pedro River. The habitat in the environment benefits from more effluent. It will also help in negotiation with FEMA to update their maps, so that parts of the Town will no longer be in the floodplain and would eliminate the need for the Town to carry flood insurance.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town's basic financial statements. The Town's basic financial statements comprise three components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town's finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. The accrual basis of accounting is used for the government-wide financial statements.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town's assets plus deferred outflows of resources, less liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the Town's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused compensated absences).

In the government-wide financial statements the Town's activities are presented in the following categories:

 Governmental activities – Most of the Town's basic services are included here, such as general government, public safety, highways and streets, and culture and recreation. Sales taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and charges for services finance most of these activities. Business-type activities – The services provided by the Town included here are water, sewer, sanitation, and landfill. The services are primarily financed through user fees and charges.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the Town's near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the governmentwide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the Town's near-term financing decision. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances for the General and Effluent Recharge Project funds, which are considered to be major funds. Data from the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining schedules.

Proprietary funds. The Town maintains one type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements. The Town uses an enterprise fund to account for its utility operations. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide information for the Water, Sewer, Sanitation and Landfill Funds, which are considered to be major funds of the Town.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the Town's own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial statements can be found immediately following the basic financial statements.

Other information. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Town's budget process. The Town adopts an annual expenditure budget for all governmental funds. A schedule of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – budget and actual has been provided for the General Fund as required supplementary information.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial position. In the case of the Town, assets and deferred outflows exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows by \$13.7 million at the current fiscal year end.

A significant portion of the Town's net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, land improvements; buildings and improvements; infrastructure; vehicles, machinery, and equipment; and construction in progress), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to its citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending. Although the Town's investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

The following table presents a summary of the Town's net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014.

	20 Govern Activ	mental		2014 vernmental ctivities	2015 Business-type Activities	2014 Business-type Activities	2015 Total	2014 Total
Current and other assets	\$ (29	01,781)	\$	(305,577)	\$6,796,692	\$7,851,631	\$6,504,911	\$7,546,054
Capital assets, net	5,6	56,705		5,821,481	5,458,151	5,635,642	11,114856	11,457,123
Total assets	5,3	64,924		5,515,904	12,254,843	13,487,273	17,619,767	19,003,177
Total Deferred outflows	10	0,195*					100,195	
Current liabilities	1	98,498		200,958	211,764	187,715	410,262	388,673
Long-term liabilities	35	0,305*	_	177,080	3,252,951	3,340,565	3,603,256	3,517,645
Total liabilities	5	48,803		378,038	3,464,715	3,528,280	4,013,518	3,906,318
Total Deferred inflows	-1	0,645*				1.1	10,645	-
Net investment in capital assets	5,4	78,355		5,578,499	4,898,578	4,964,268	10,376,933	10,542,767
Restricted	5	52,565		516,448			552,565	516,448
Unrestricted	(1,12	25,249)		(957,081)	3,891,550	4,994,725	2,766,301	4,037,644
Total net position	\$ 4.9	05,671	\$	5.137.866	\$ 8,790,128	<u>\$ 9,958,993</u>	<u>\$13,695,799</u>	\$15.096,859

*Due to implementation of GASB 68, a prior period adjustment of \$169,099 is reflected in June 2015. The restated beginning net position for governmental activities for fiscal year 2015 is \$4,968,767. Please see note 2 for details. Restatement of the comparative financial data for the prior period presented is not practical due to the limited information obtainable from the pension plans.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ALYSIS

The Town's financial position is the product of several financial transactions including the net results of activities, the acquisition and payment of debt, the acquisition and disposal of capital assets, and the depreciation of capital assets.

Changes in net position. The Town's total revenues for the current fiscal year were \$3.5 million. The total cost of all programs and services was \$4.5 million. The following table presents a summary of the changes in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014.

	2015 Governmental Activities		2014 vernmental activities		2015 siness-type Activities		2014 siness-type Activities		2015 Total	2014 Total
Program revenues: Charges for services Operating grants and contributions Capital grants and contributions	\$ 864,761 257,721 3,921	\$	920,986 249,162 188,568	\$	1,431,445	\$	1,313,785	\$	2,296,206 257,721 3,921	\$ 2,234,771 249,162 188,568
General revenues: Property taxes Sales taxes Franchise taxes State shared revenues	65,586 329,572 13,633 306,541		74,010 348,159 12,488 286,981						65,586 329,572 13,633 306,541	74,010 348,159 12,488 286,981
Investment income Miscellaneous	54,649		112,825		8,395		1,863		8,395 54,649	1,863 112,825
Total revenues	1,896,384		2,193,179		1,439,840	_	1,315,648	-	3,336,224	3,508,827
Expenses:										1 000 001
General government Public safety Highways and streets Culture and recreation Water Sewer Landfill Sanitation	972,039 1,135,050 95,262 220,530		1,083,694 1,116,459 86,714 204,035		294,523 152,121 1,585,441 95,393		230,519 135,638 1,668,596 100,021		972,039 1,135,050 95,262 220,530 294,523 152,121 1,585,441 95,393	1,083,694 1,116,459 86,714 204,035 230,519 135,638 1,668,596 100,021
Total expenses	2,422,881		2,490,902		2,127,478		2,134,774		4,550,359	4,625,676
Transfers	479,779	2-3	(127,528)	-	(479,779)		127,528			
Special item	(16,378)	i	(1,448)		-		100	_	(17,826)	
Change in net position	(63,096)	1.	(425,251)		(1,168,865)		(691,598)		(1,231,961)	(1,116,849)
Net position, beginning, as restated	4,968,767*	1	5,563,117		9,958,993		10,650,591	_	14,927,760	16,213,708
Net position, ending	\$ 4,905,671	\$	5,137,866		\$8,790,128	_	\$9,958,993	\$	13,695,799	\$ 15,096,859

*Due to implementation of GASB 68, a prior period adjustment of \$169,099 is reflected in June 2015. The restated beginning net position for governmental activities for fiscal year 2015 is \$4,968,767. Please see note 2 for details. Restatement of the comparative financial data for the prior period presented is not practical due to the limited information obtainable from the pension plans.

- Program revenues decreased \$232,313 for governmental activities and increased \$177,660 for business-type activities. The main reasons for the change in revenue are the loss of a capital grant and increases in the sewer rates and increases in tonnage for the landfill.
- General government expenditures decreased \$68,021, due to the completion of the grant for the Camp Naco Preservation Fund.
- Landfill expenditures for business-type activities decreased \$83,155 due to staffing changes within the landfill department.

Governmental and Business-type activities. The following table presents the cost of the Town's major functional activities. The table also shows each function's net cost (total cost less charges for services generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid provided for specific programs). The net cost shows the financial burden that was placed on the State and Town's taxpayers by each of these functions.

		20	15		2014			
	E	Total xpenses		(Expenses)/ Revenue		Fotal penses	100.00	Expenses)/ evenue
General government General government Public safety Highways and streets Culture and recreation	\$	972,039 1,135,050 95,262 220,530	\$	(412,413) (700,177) 35,820 (219,978)	\$	1,083,694 1,116,459 86,714 204,035	\$	(458,897) (507,497) 35,103 (200,895)
Total	\$	2,422,881	\$	(1,296,478)	\$	2,490,902	\$	(1,132,186)
Business-type Activities Water	\$	294,523	\$	(127,545)	\$	230,519	\$	(65,745)
Sewer		152,121		(36,792)		135,638		(48,807)
Landfill		1,585,441		(572,005)		1,668,596		(735,029)
Sanitation		95,393		40,309		100,021		28,592
Total	\$	2,127,478	\$	(696,033)	\$	2,134,774	\$	(820,989)

- The cost of all governmental activities this year was \$2.4 million, which represents a decrease of \$68,021 from the prior year.
- The cost of all business-type activities this year was \$2.1 million, a decrease of \$7,296 from the prior year.
- The costs of governmental activities were financed by general revenues, which are made up of primarily sales taxes and unrestricted state shared revenues of \$635,140.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets. At year end, the Town had a net investment of \$11.1 million in capital assets, including buildings, facilities, vehicles, computers, equipment, and infrastructure assets. This amount represents a net increase prior to depreciation of \$214,025 from the prior fiscal year. Total depreciation expense for the current fiscal year was \$556,292.

The following schedule presents capital asset balances for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2014.

	1.000	2015 Governmental Activities		overnmental		2014 vernmental Activities	2015 Business-type Activities		2014 Business-type Activities	
Non-depreciable assets	\$	27,056	\$	27,056	\$	251,619	\$	251,619		
Depreciable assets		9,960,728		9,829,401		9,137,207		9,054,509		
Less: Accumulated depreciation		(4,331,079)		(4,034,976)	(3,930,675)	(3,670,486)		
Total	\$	5,656,705	\$	5,821,481	\$	5,458,151	\$	5,635,642		

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 5.

Debt Administration. At year end, the Town had \$748,128 in capital lease obligations outstanding, with \$166,995 due within one year.

Additional information on the Town's long-term debt can be found in Notes 6 through 8.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE TOWN'S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of the Town's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of the Town's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

The financial performance of the Town as a whole is reflected in its governmental funds. As the Town completed the year, its governmental funds reported a combined negative fund balance of (\$399,343), a increase of \$9,132 due mostly to transfers from enterprise funds of \$479,779.

The General Fund is the principal operating fund of the Town. The decrease in fund balance of \$509,643 for the current fiscal year was due to decreases in revenue from fines and forfeits and grants revenue, as well as increased general government and public safety expenditures.

Proprietary funds. Net position of the enterprise funds in total at the end of the year amounted to \$8.8 million, a decrease of \$1,168,865 from the prior year.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

A schedule showing the original and final budget amounts compared to the Town's actual financial activity for the General Fund is provided in this report as required supplementary information. The positive variance of \$235,958 in general government expenditures was a result of lower than expected costs for General Government and Capital Outlays.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET AND RATES

The adopted combined operating and capital expenditure budget for fiscal year 2015-2016 totals \$4,673,756, a decrease of \$80,110 or 2% less than fiscal year 2014-2015.

General Fund

The budget for the General Fund increased \$235,958 in fiscal year 2015-2016, an increase of approximately 15% due to estimated increases in city sales taxes and grants.

Enterprise Fund

The Town's budget for utility enterprise funds in total for fiscal year 2015-2016 are consistent with the budgeted amounts for fiscal year 2014-2015.

CONTACTING THE TOWN'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and to demonstrate the Town's accountability for the resources it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional information, contact the Accounting Department, 500 North Gonzales Blvd., Town of Huachuca City, Arizona 85616.

Basic Financial Statements

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

	Governmental activities	Business-type activities	Total
Assets: Current assets: Cash and investments Accounts receivable, net Taxes receivable, net	\$ 498,285 11,193 44,419	\$ 5,676,842 274,172	\$ 6,175,127 285,365 44,419
Due (to) from other funds	(845,678)	845,678	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Total current assets	(291,781)	6,796,692	6,504,911
Noncurrent assets: Capital assets, non-depreciable Capital assets, depreciable, net	27,056 5,629,649	251,619 5,206,532	278,675 10,836,181
Total noncurrent assets	5,656,705	5,458,151	11,114,856
Total assets	5,364,924	12,254,843	17,619,767
Deferred outflows of resources: Deferred outflows related to pensions	100,195		100,195
Total deferred outflows of resources	100,195		100,195
Liabilities: Current liabilities: Accounts payable Accrued payroll and related benefits Compensated absences payable Unearned revenue Customer deposits Current portion of capital lease obligations Total current liabilities	58,861 48,339 32,158 362 58,778 198,498	53,462 12,522 15,004 - 22,559 108,217 211,764	112,323 60,861 47,162 362 22,559 166,995 410,262
Noncurrent liabilities: Capital lease obligations, net of current portion Landfill closure and post-closure payable Net pension liability	119,572 	451,356 2,801,595	570,928 2,801,595
Total noncurrent liabilities	350,305	3,252,951	3,603,256
Total liabilities	548,803	3,464,715	4,013,518
Deferred inflows of resources: Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions	10,645		10,645
Total deferred inflows of resources	10,645	<u> </u>	10,645
Net position: Net investment in capital assets Restricted Unrestricted	5,478,355 552,565 (1,125,249)	4,898,578 - 3,891,550	10,376,933 552,565 2,766,301
Total net position	\$ 4,905,671	\$ 8,790,128	\$ 13,695,799

See notes to financial statements.

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

		-		Program revenues		
	Expenses	C	harges for services	Operating grants and contributions		
		-	Sector Courts of			
\$	972,039	\$		\$	10,906	
	1,135,050		319,140		115,733	
	95,262				131,082	
	220,530	_	552			
-	2,422,881	_	864,761		257,721	
	294,523		166,978		(**)	
	152,121		115,329			
	1,585,441		1,013,436		2	
	95,393	_	135,702	_		
-	2,127,478		1,431,445			
\$	4,550,359	\$	2,296,206	\$	257,721	
	\$	1,135,050 95,262 220,530 2,422,881 294,523 152,121 1,585,441 95,393 2,127,478	Expenses \$ 972,039 \$ 1,135,050 95,262 220,530 2,422,881 294,523 152,121 1,585,441 95,393 2,127,478	$\begin{array}{c ccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	Expenses Charges for services gr \$ 972,039 \$ 545,069 \$ 1,135,050 319,140 95,262 220,530 552 - 2,422,881 864,761 - 294,523 166,978 - 1,585,441 1,013,436 - 95,393 135,702 - 2,127,478 1,431,445 -	

General revenues:

Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes

Sales taxes

Franchise taxes

State shared revenues

Investment income

Miscellaneous

Special item - undocumented credit card expenses

Transfers

Total general revenues, special items and transfers

Change in net position Net position, beginning of year, as restated

Net position, end of year

				ense) revenue and e in net position	
ital grants and tributions	G	overnmental activities		siness-type activities	 Total
\$ 3,921 - -	\$	(412,143) (700,177) 35,820 (219,978)	\$	1.1.1	\$ (412,143 (700,177 35,820 (219,978
 3,921	_	(1,296,478)	_		 (1,296,478
				(127,545) (36,792) (572,005) 40,309	(127,545 (36,792 (572,005 40,309
			_	(696,033)	(696,033
\$ 3,921		(1,296,478)	-	(696,033)	 (1,992,511
		65,586 329,572 13,633 306,541 - 54,649 (16,378) 479,779		8,395 - (1,448) (479,779)	 65,586 329,572 13,633 306,541 8,395 54,649 (17,826
	_	1,233,382	-	(472,832)	 760,550
		(63,096) 4,968,767	_	(1,168,865) 9,958,993	 (1,231,961 14,927,760
	\$	4,905,671	\$	8,790,128	\$ 13,695,799

See notes to financial statements.

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

	General		on-major vernmental funds	go	Total vernmental funds
1					12.00122
\$	8	\$	498,285	\$	498,285
					11,193
-	32,220	4	12,199	_	44,419
\$	43,413	\$	510,484	\$	553,897
\$	55,937	\$		\$	58,861
	45,252		3,087		48,339
	845,678		-		845,678
-	362	_	<u></u>		362
-	947,229		6,011	-	953,240
	Sec. 200		552,565		552,565
-	(903,816)	_	(48,092)		(951,908)
-	(903,816)		504,473	-	(399,343)
\$	43,413	\$	510,484	\$	553,897
	\$	11,193 32,220 \$ 43,413 \$ 55,937 45,252 845,678 362 947,229 - (903,816) (903,816)	General \$ - \$ 11,193 32,220 \$ \$ 43,413 \$ \$ 43,413 \$ \$ 55,937 \$ \$ 55,937 \$ \$ 55,937 \$ \$ 55,937 \$ \$ 55,937 \$ \$ 55,937 \$ \$ 55,937 \$ \$ 362		$\begin{tabular}{ c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c c$

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

Total fund balances - governmental funds	\$ (399	9,343)
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:		
Net capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.	5,650	6,705
Certain liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,		
therefore, are not reported in the funds:	(3)	2,158)
Compensated absences payable Capital lease obligations		8,350)
Net pension liability		0,733)
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions are		
applicable to future periods and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:	10	0,195
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions		0,645)
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions	0	0,040)
Net position of governmental activities	\$ 4,90	5,671

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

		General		on-major vernmental funds	Total governmental funds	
Revenues:	20	15 831	1			05 500
Property taxes	\$	65,586	\$	-	5	65,586
Sales taxes		329,572		-		329,572
Franchise taxes		13,633		-		13,633
Landfill land lease		530,000				530,000
Licenses and permits		15,069				15,069
Intergovernmental		19,261		238,765		258,026
Charges for services		51,501		+ (51,501
Fines and forfeits		268,191		-		268,191
State shared revenues		306,541		× .		306,541
Contributions and donations		3,616				3,616
Other		54,649				54,649
Total revenues	-	1,657,619		238,765		1,896,384
Expenditures:						
Current:						
General government		652,566		7,514		660,080
Public safety		1,107,350		55,616		1,162,966
Highway and streets		-		95,262		95,262
Culture and recreation		220,530				220,530
Capital outlay		96,419		40,203		136,622
Debt service:						
Principal retirement		64,632		~		64,632
Interest and fiscal charges		10,561				10,561
Total expenditures		2,152,058		198,595	-	2,350,653
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures		(494,439)		40,170		(454,269)
Other financing sources (uses):				1000 000		170 770
Transfers in		×		479,779	-	479,779
Total other financing sources (uses)		141.		479,779		479,779
Special item:		and and a		10.1210		(10.070)
Undocumented credit card expenses		(15,204)	·	(1,174)	-	(16,378)
Net change in fund balances		(509,643)		518,775		9,132
Fund balances (deficits), beginning of year	_	(394,173)		(14,302)	-	(408,475)
Fund balances (deficits), end of year	\$	(903,816)	\$	504,473	\$	(399,343)

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds	\$ 9,132
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:	
Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures. However, in the Statement of Activities, the cost of those capital assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. In the current period, these amounts are: Capital outlay Depreciation expense	131,327 (296,103)
Town pension contributions are reported as expenditures in the governmental funds when made. However, they are reported as deferred outflow of resources in the statement of net position because the reported pension liability is measured a year before the Town's report date. Pension expense, which is the change in the net pension liability adjusted for changes in deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pensions is reported in the statement of activities.	
Pension contributions Pension expense	71,044 (43,128)
Addition of capital lease agreements provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but the agreement increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. Repayment of capital lease obligations is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position. In the current year, the amount consists of:	
Principal paid	 64,632
Change in net position of governmental activities	\$ (63,096)
2011 TH 2011 TH 2011 TH 2011 TH 2012 TH	

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2015

Water	Sewer
6	
12	
	\$ 307,199
\$ -	\$ 307,199 11,782
	11,702
	318,981
(57,920)	510,901
and the second se	1,969
	1,985,769
2,066,712	1,987,738
2,008,786	2,306,719
13,863	2,570
2,264	1,893
2,428	2,060
19,270	2,445
37,825	8,968
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
	·
37,825	8,968
2,066,712	1,987,738
(95,751)	310,013
\$ 1,970,961	\$ 2,297,751
	13,863 2,264 2,428 19,270 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -

Landfill		S	Sanitation		Total
\$	4,956,970	\$	412,673	\$	5,676,842
	243,824		8,589		274,172
	913,581				845,678
	6,114,375	-	421,262	-	6,796,692
	248,638				251,619
	1,152,474		2,589		5,206,532
	1,401,112	_	2,589	1	5,458,151
	7,515,487	-	423,851	-	12,254,843
	36,987		42		53,462
	7,324		1,041		12,522
	9,445		1,071	15,004	
	800		44		22,559
	108,217		-		108,217
	162,773	-	2,198		211,764
	451,356				451,356
	2,801,595				2,801,595
	3,252,951	_	-	_	3,252,951
_					
	3,415,724		2,198	-	3,464,715
	3,415,724		2,198	-	
	Contraction of the				3,464,715 4,898,578 3,891,550

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION -PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

	Water		Sewer
Operating revenues:		1.1	The Las
Charges for services	\$ 166,978	\$	115,329
Total operating revenues	 166,978	-	115,329
Operating expenses:			
Cost of sales and services	244,656		108,029
Change in landfill closure and post closure			
Depreciation	49,867	_	44,092
Total operating expenses	 294,523	_	152,121
Operating income (loss)	 (127,545)	_	(36,792)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):			
Investment income			
Interest expense	 	_	
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)	 	-	
Income (loss) before transfers and special item	 (127,545)	_	(36,792)
Transfers out	-		
Special item - undocumented credit card expenses	 (237)	_	(138)
Changes in net position	 (127,782)	-	(36,930)
Total net position, beginning of year	2,098,743	-	2,334,681
Total net position, end of year	\$ 1,970,961	\$	2,297,751
		-	

Landfill	S	Sanitation		Total	
\$ 1,013,436	\$	135,702	\$	1,431,445	
1,013,436		135,702	<u>.</u>	1,431,445	
1,372,508		94,530		1,819,723	
27,591				27,591	
165,367	-	863	-	260,189	
1,565,466		95,393	-	2,107,503	
(552,030)	-	40,309		(676,058)	
8,395		4		8,395	
(19,975)		÷.	-	(19,975)	
(11,580)	_	<u> </u>	_	(11,580	
(563,610)	_	40,309	_	(687,638	
(479,779)				(479,779	
(550)		(523)		(1,448	
(1,043,939)		39,786	_	(1,168,865	
5,143,702		381,867	_	9,958,993	
\$ 4,099,763	\$	421,653	\$	8,790,128	

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

	Water	Sewer
Cash flows from operating activities: Cash received from customers Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services Cash payments to employees for services Other operating cash payments Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	\$ 195,306 (145,867) (91,565) (237) (42,363)	\$ 115,867 (29,332) (76,284) (138) 10,113
Cash flows from noncapital and related financing activities: Advances (to) from other funds Interfund transfers Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities	62,441	<u> </u>
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: Purchases of capital assets Investment income Principal paid on capital lease obligations Interest paid on capital lease obligations Net cash used in capital and related financing activities	(20,228)	(9,000) - - - - (9,000)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents Cash and cash equivalents, beginning Cash and cash equivalents, ending	(150) 150 \$ -	1,113 306,086 \$ 307,199
Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: Operating income (loss) Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: Depreciation Undocumented credit card expenses Changes in operating assets and liabilities: Accounts receivable Accounts payable Accrued payroll and related benefits	\$ (127,545) 49,867 (237) 29,225 6,332 892	\$ (36,792) 44,092 (138) (812) 1,673 740
Customer deposits Landfill closure and postclosure liability Total adjustments	(897)	1,350
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	\$ (42,363)	\$ 10,113

_	Landfill	S	anitation		Total
\$	924,736	\$	142,876	\$	1,378,785
	(964,544)		(47,926)		(1,187,669)
	(395,558)		(48,455)		(611,862)
	(550)		(523)		(1,448)
	(435,916)	_	45,972	_	(422,194)
	(153,625)		1.2		(91,184)
_	(479,779)			-	(479,779)
	(633,404)		÷.,		(570,963)
	(53,470)				(82,698)
	8,395		1.2		8,395
	(111,801)		(A.)	(111,801	
	(19,975)		<u> </u>	-	(19,975
	(176,851)	_		1	(206,079
	(1,246,171)		45,972		(1,199,236
	6,203,141		366,701	6,876,07	
\$	4,956,970	\$	412,673	\$	5,676,842
\$	(552,030)	\$	40,309	\$	(676,058
	165,367		863		260,189
	(550)		(523)		(1,448
	(88,700)		7,174		(53,113
	12,900		(2,163)		18,742
	(494)		312		1,450
					453
	27,591	-		-	27,591
	116,114		5,663	_	253,864
\$	(435,916)	\$	45,972	\$	(422,194

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2015

	Pension Trust
Assets: Cash and investments	\$ 72,877
Total assets	72,877
Net position: Held in trust	\$ 72,877

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

	Pension Trust
Additions:	0 0 105
Investment income	\$ 2,195
Total additions	2,195
Deductions:	A 6.44
Distributions	1,797
Total deductions	1,797
Change in net position	398
Net position, beginning of year	72,479
Net position, end of year	\$ 72,877

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

1. Summary of significant accounting policies:

The accounting policies of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona (Town) conform to U.S. generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governmental units as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

During the year ended June 30, 2015, the Town implemented GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date. GASB 68 and 71 establish standards for measuring and recognizing net pension assets and liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures related to pension benefits provided through defined benefit pension plans. In addition, Statement No. 68 requires disclosure of information related to pension benefits.

Reporting entity:

The Town is a municipal entity governed by an elected mayor and council. As required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the Town and its component units, entities for which the Town is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the Town's operations and so data from these units are combined with data of the Town, the primary government.

Town of Huachuca City, Arizona Municipal Property Corporation - The Town of Huachuca City, Arizona, Arizona Municipal Property Corporation's (MPC) board of directors consists of three members which are appointed by the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona's Town Council. The MPC, which is a nonprofit corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Arizona, was formed for the sole purpose of assisting the Town in obtaining financing for various projects of the Town. The MPC debt service is reported within the governmental activities in the government-wide statements. As there was no activity during the year, separate financial statements are not prepared on a stand-alone basis.

Government-wide and fund financial statements:

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) present financial information about the Town as a whole. The reported information includes all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town. These statements are to distinguish between the governmental and business-type activities of the Town. Governmental activities normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, and are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. For the most part, the effect of internal activity has been removed from these statements. All internal balances in the statement of net position have been eliminated, with the exception of those representing balances between the governmental activities and the business-type activities, which are presented as due to/from other funds and eliminated in the total column.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):

Government-wide and fund financial statements (continued):

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes, investment income and other items not included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds and the major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation:

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have been met. As a general rule, the effect of internal activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements; however, the effects of interfund services provided and used between functions are reported as expenses and program revenues at amounts approximating their external exchange value.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital lease agreements are reported as other financing sources.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation (continued):

Property taxes, sales taxes, franchise taxes, licenses and permits, charges for services, and investment income associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Grants and similar awards are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the grantor or provider have been met. Miscellaneous revenue is not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until received in cash. Unearned revenue arises when resources are received by the Town before it has legal claim to them, as when grant monies are received prior to meeting all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider.

Delinquent property taxes and other receivables have been recorded as unearned revenue. Receivables that will not be collected within the available period have been reported as deferred inflows of resources on the governmental fund financial statements.

The focus of governmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund is presented in a separate column. Non-major funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - This fund is the Town's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the Town, except those required to be accounted for in other funds.

The Town reports the following major proprietary funds:

Water Fund - This fund accounts for the operations, maintenance and construction of the Town's water system and facilities.

Sewer Fund - This fund accounts for the operations of the Town's sewer system, including the acquisition and construction of facilities and infrastructure necessary to support the sewer system funded by the issuance of long-term debt and user fees.

Landfill Fund - This fund accounts for the operations of the Town's landfill, including the acquisition and construction of facilities and infrastructure necessary to support the landfill funded by user fees.

Sanitation Fund - This fund accounts for the operations of the Town's solid waste collections and disposals.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):

Measurement focus, basis of accounting and financial statement presentation (continued): Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

Fiduciary Fund - The Fiduciary Fund is an Agency Fund which accounts for resources held by the Town on behalf of others and includes the Volunteer Firefighter's Relief and Pension Trust Fund. The Volunteer Firefighter's Relief and Pension Trust Fund accounts for the contributions to and earnings of the volunteer firefighter's pension trust.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The Town has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the Town's enterprise fund are charges to customers. Operating expenses for these funds include the cost of sales and services and depreciation. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Estimates:

The preparation of the basic financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and investments:

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Town considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents at year end were cash on hand, restricted and unrestricted cash in bank, and investments.

Nonparticipating interest-earning investment contracts are stated at cost. Money market investments and participating interest investment contracts with a remaining maturity of one year or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value.

Investment income is composed of interest, dividends and net changes in the fair value of applicable investments.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):

Receivables and payables:

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year is referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds."

All trade and property tax receivables, are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.

Property tax:

Property taxes are levied and collected by the Cochise County Treasurer on behalf of the Town. Property taxes are levied on or before the third Monday in August that become due and payable in two equal installments. Taxes become delinquent after the first business day of both November and May.

The State Constitution and State law specify a property tax levy limitation system. The system consists of two levies, a limited levy known as the primary property tax levy and an unlimited levy referred to as the secondary levy, which may only be used to retire bonded indebtedness.

The primary tax levy is limited to an increase of 2% over the previous year's maximum allowable primary levy, plus an increased dollar amount because of a net gain in property not taxed the previous year. Also, the primary property tax from all taxing jurisdictions for homeowners may not exceed 1% of the market value of their homes. If the combined primary property tax (for the Town, County, School District, etc.) exceeds 1% of the market value of the homes, the school districts will reduce their rate until the homeowners' aggregate rate is equal to or less than the allowable 1%. The State will then subsidize the school districts for the reduced revenue. This 1% limitation applies to primary property taxes only and does not affect the secondary property tax levy.

There is also a control on the assessed value of property for primary tax purposes. The base year for the new tax system is fiscal year 1978-79. From this base year, two assessed values evolve. The primary assessed values are allowed to increase by no more than 10 percent a year. The dollar amount of the secondary property tax levy is "unlimited" and the actual full cash value of property is used in determining the tax rate.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):

Capital assets:

Capital assets, which include land; land improvements; buildings and improvements; machinery, vehicles and equipment; construction in progress; and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual cost of \$5,000 or more and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation. General government infrastructure capital assets include only those assets acquired or constructed since July 1, 2003.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Certain capital assets of the Town are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets	Years
Land improvements	20
Buildings	50
Building improvements	20
Infrastructure	75
Machinery, vehicles and equipment	8 - 15

Compensated absences:

The Town's employee vacation and sick leave policies generally provide for granting vacation and sick leave with pay. The liability has been calculated using the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees who currently are eligible to receive termination payments and other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such payments upon termination are included. The current and long-term liabilities for accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported on the government-wide financial statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee leave, resignations and retirements.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):

Long-term obligations:

The amount capitalized under capital leases is the lesser of the present value of the minimum lease payments or the fair value of the leased properties at the beginning of the respective lease terms. In the government-wide and proprietary funds financial statements, capital leases and the related lease obligations are reported as liabilities. In the fund financial statements, the acquisition is reflected as an expenditure and other financing source.

Deferred outflows and inflows of resources:

The statement of net position includes separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to future periods that will be recognized as an expense in future periods. Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods and will be recognized as a revenue in future periods.

Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability or asset, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position and additions to/deductions from the plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the plan. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. The plan's investments are reported at fair value.

Interfund activity:

Flows of cash from one fund to another without a requirement for repayment are reported as interfund transfers. Interfund transfers between governmental funds are eliminated in the Statement of Activities. Interfund transfers in the fund statements are reported as other financing sources/uses in governmental funds and after nonoperating revenues/expenses in proprietary funds.

Fund balance:

In the fund financial statements, fund balance is divided into five classifications based on a hierarchy of the constraints placed on the use of those resources. The classifications are based on the relative strength of the constraints that control how the specific amounts can be spent. The classifications are as follows:

Nonspendable - includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are not in spendable form, or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted - amounts with constraints placed on their use that are either externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued):

Fund balance (continued):

Committed - includes amounts that can be used only for the specific purposes imposed by formal action of the Town Council. These committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the Town Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action it employed to previously commit these amounts. The Town does not have a formal policy or procedures for the utilization of committed fund balance, accordingly, no committed fund balance amounts are reported.

Assigned - amounts intended to be used by the Town for specific purposes but do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed. Fund balance may be assigned by either the highest level of decision making, or by a body or an official designated for that purpose. The Town does not have a formal policy for the utilization of assigned fund balance, accordingly, no assigned fund balance amounts are reported.

Unassigned - the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all spendable amounts not contained in the other classifications. In other governmental funds, the unassigned classification is used only to report a deficit balance resulting from overspending for specific purposes for which amounts had been restricted, committed, or assigned.

The Town applies restricted resources first when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which either restricted or unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) amounts are available. Similarly, within unrestricted fund balance, committed amounts are reduced first followed by assigned, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of the unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

The table below provides detail of the major components of the Town's fund balance classifications at year end.

Fund balances: Restricted: Grants Public safety Highways and streets Unassigned	Ge		Non-major governmental funds		
Fund balances:					
Restricted:					
Grants	\$		\$	6,338	
Public safety		÷.		36,603	
		- e		509,624	
		(903,816)	_	(48,092)	
Total fund balances	\$	(903,816)	\$	504,473	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

2. Change in accounting principle:

Net position as of July 1, 2014 has been restated as follows for the implementation of GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, as amended by GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date.

		activities
Net position, as previously reported, June 30, 2014	\$	5,137,866
Adjustments - implementation of GASB 68 Net pension liability Deferred outflows - Town contributions made during fiscal year 2014	1	(235,288) 66,189
		(169,099)
Net position, as restated, June 30, 2014	<u>\$</u>	4,968,767

3. Stewardship, compliance and accountability:

Individual deficit fund balances:

At year end, the following major and non-major governmental funds reported deficits in fund balance.

	Deficit
Major funds: General	\$ 903,816
Non-major governmental funds: Grant opportunity	48,092

The deficits arose because of operations during the year and prior years. Deficit balances are a result of accumulated expenditures that are expected to be reimbursed at their completion by the corresponding funding source.

Excess expenditures over budget:

At June 30, 2015, the Town had expenditures in funds that exceeded the budgets; however, this does not constitute a violation of any legal provisions.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

4. Cash and investments:

The Arizona Revised Statutes (A.R.S.) authorize the Town to invest public monies in obligations of the U.S. Government and its agencies, obligations of the State and certain local government subdivisions, interest-bearing savings accounts and certificates of deposit, collateralized repurchase agreements, certain obligations of U.S. corporations, and certain other securities. The statutes do not include any requirements for credit risk, custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, or foreign currency risk for the Town's investments.

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of bank failure the Town's deposits may not be returned to the Town. The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2015, the carrying amount of the Town's deposits was \$3,462,639 and the bank balance was \$3,497,012. In addition, at June 30, 2015 the Town had \$1,409,623 of certificates of deposit with maturities from one to three years.

At June 30, 2015, the Town's investments consisted of the following.

	Average maturities	Fair value			
Municipal bonds Equities	10 years	\$	314,680 988,185		
Equilios		\$	1,302,865		

Interest Rate Risk - The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

- Credit Risk The Town limits its investments to certificates of deposit, U.S. government securities, repurchase agreements, pooled investment funds established by the State Treasurer, bonds issued by the state, county, incorporated cities, towns, or school districts, or cash and cash equivalents with a local financial institution. The Town's investments in municipal bonds were rated Aaa by Moody's Investors Service and AA- by Standard and Poor's.
- Custodial Credit Risk Investments For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. None of the Town's investments are subject to custodial credit risk.
- Concentration of Credit Risk The Town does not have a formal policy with regard to concentration of credit risk. More than 5% of the Town's investments are in municipal bonds and equities. Municipal bonds and equities represent 24% and 76% of the Town's investments.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

5. Capital assets:

A summary of capital asset activity for the current fiscal year follows:

Governmental activities		Beginning balance	Increase		Decrease			Ending balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated: Land	\$	27,056	\$		5	2	<u>\$</u>	27,056
Total capital assets, not being depreciated	_	27,056	2		_			27,056
Capital assets, being depreciated: Land improvements Buildings and improvements Infrastructure Machinery, vehicles and equipment	1	2,944,624 1,590,502 3,491,155 1,803,120		49,575 - 81,752	_			2,994,199 1,590,502 3,491,155 1,884,872
Total capital assets being depreciated	-	9,829,401	-	131,327	-	+		9,960,728
Less accumulated depreciation for: Land improvements Buildings and improvements Infrastructure Machinery, vehicles and equipment		(930,835) (642,512) (1,232,864) (1,228,765)		(113,460) (31,810) (42,598) (108,235)	1	-		(1,044,295) (674,322) (1,275,462) (1,337,000)
Total accumulated depreciation	_	(4,034,976)		(296,103)	_	4		(4,331,079)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net	1	5,794,425	1	(164,776)		-		5,629,649
Governmental activities capital assets, net	\$	5,821,481	\$	(164,776)	\$	-	\$	5,656,705

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

5. Capital assets (continued):

Business-type activities		Beginning balance	Increase		Decrease			Ending balance
Capital assets, not being depreciated: Land	\$	251,619	\$		<u>\$</u>	_	. <u>\$</u>	251,619
Total capital assets, not being depreciated	_	251,619	1		_	-		251,619
Capital assets, being depreciated: Buildings and improvements Infrastructure Machinery, vehicles and equipment		313,459 6,766,371 1,974,679		64,698 - 18,000		-		378,157 6,766,371 1,992,679
Total capital assets being depreciated		9,054,509	_	82,698	, —	-	-	9,137,207
Less accumulated depreciation for: Land improvements Buildings and improvements Infrastructure Machinery, vehicles and equipment		(3,090) (93,823) (2,722,104) (851,469)		(1,878) (4,582) (90,537) (163,192)		111	_	(4,968) (98,405) (2,812,641) (1,014,661)
Total accumulated depreciation		(3,670,486)	-	(260,189)	_	+	4	(3,930,675)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net	_	5,384,023	_	(177,491)	-	*	-	5,206,532
Business-type activities capital assets, net	\$	5,635,642	\$	(177,491)	\$	-	\$	5,458,151

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs as follows:

Governmental activities:		
General government	\$	84,686
Public safety		76,046
Highways and streets		45,829
Culture and recreation	-	89,542
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities	\$	296,103
Business-type activities:		and shared
Water	\$	49,867
Sewer		44,092
Sanitation		863
Landfill	-	165,367
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities	\$	260,189

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

6. Capital lease obligations:

The Town has entered into various long-term capital leases involving the acquisition of machinery, vehicles and equipment. These leases qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore, have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum lease payments as of their respective inception dates. These commitments are expected to be funded by the Town's General Fund.

The assets acquired through capital leases are as follows:

	vernmental activities	siness-type activities
Machinery, vehicles and equipment Less accumulated depreciation	\$ 334,297 122,298	\$ 822,525 246,758
	\$ 211,999	\$ 575,767

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments at year end were as follows:

Year ending June 30,	vernmental activities		siness-type activities
2016 2017 2018 2019	\$ 65,808 53,745 53,745 20,130	\$	124,788 124,788 352,394
Total minimum lease payments Less amount representing interest Net present value of minimum lease payments Less amount due within one year	193,428 15,078 178,350 58,778	_	601,970 42,397 559,573 108,217
	\$ 119,572	\$	451,356

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

7. Landfill closure and post-closure costs:

State and federal laws and regulations require the Town to place a final cover on its landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site for 30 years after closure. Although closure and postclosure care costs will not be paid until near or after the date that the landfill stops accepting waste, the Town reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an addition to long-term liabilities on the Statement of Net Position in each period based on the landfill capacity the Town used as of fiscal year end. The \$2,801,595 reported as landfill closure and postclosure care liability at year end, represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on prior closure and post closure costs recognized. As of June 30, 2015, the estimated landfill capacity used was 62.3%, and the estimated remaining life of the landfill is 25 years. The Town will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and postclosure care of \$1,208,280 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled. These amounts are based on what it would cost to perform all closure and postclosure care in 2015. Actual costs will likely vary due to inflation, changes in technology, or revisions of applicable laws and regulations. Resources from the Landfill Fund will be used to liquidate the landfill closure and postclosure payable.

Changes in long-term liabilities:

Long-term liability activity for the current fiscal year was as follows:

	13	Beginning balance	A	dditions	R	eductions	_	Ending balance	ue within one year
Governmental activities: Capital lease obligations Compensated absences payable Net pension liability	\$	242,982 32,158 235,288	\$	23,000	\$	(64,632) (23,000) (4,555)	\$	178,350 32,158 230,733	\$ 58,778 32,158
	\$	510,428	\$	23,000	\$	(92,187)	\$	441,241	\$ 90,936
Business-type activities: Capital lease obligations Compensated absences payable Landfill closure and post-closure	\$	671,374 15,004 2,774,004	\$	 10,000 27,591	\$	(111,801) (10,000)	\$	559,573 15,004 2,801,595	\$ 108,217 15,004
costs payable	\$	3,460,382	\$	37,591	\$	(121,801)	\$	3,376,172	\$ 123,221

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

9. Interfund receivables, payables and transfers:

Due (to) from other funds:

At June 30, 2015, several governmental funds had negative cash balances. Negative cash was reduced by interfund borrowing with the Landfill Fund. Reimbursement from all sources is expected in the subsequent fiscal year.

	Due from							
Due to	Ge	neral fund		lon-major vernmental funds		Total		
Landfill Fund	\$	845,678	\$	÷.	\$	845,678		

Interfund transfers:

The transfer of \$479,779 from the Landfill Fund to the Effluent Project Fund and Camp Naco Preservation Fund, both non-major governmental funds, was made to fund operations and capital projects in those funds.

10. Contingent liabilities:

Federal and state grants and loans:

The Town has received a number of grants from both the federal and state governments. The governmental funding is subject to compliance audits by the respective governmental agencies. Assessments from such audits, if any, are recorded when the amounts of such assessments are reasonably determinable.

Lawsuits:

The Town is a defendant in several lawsuits as of June 30, 2015. It is the opinion of management and Town counsel that the amount of losses resulting from these litigations at June 30, 2015 would not be material to the financial position of the Town.

11. Risk management:

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

The Arizona Municipal Risk Retention Pool is structured such that member premiums are based on an actuarial review that will provide adequate reserves to allow the Pool to meet its expected financial obligations. The Pool has the authority to assess its members additional premiums should reserves and annual premiums be insufficient to meet the Pool's obligations.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

11. Risk management (continued):

The Town is also insured by Arizona Municipal Workers Compensation Fund for potential worker related accidents.

The Town continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss. Settled claims resulting from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

12. Deferred compensation plan:

The Town's employees (other than volunteer firemen and police officers) are covered under a defined contribution pension plan (401(k) plan), which provides retirement benefits for all of the Town's full-time employees. The plan is administered by John Hancock. The provisions of the plan were established by a pension board of the Town's council, which may amend the plan's provisions as necessary.

Employees are required to complete a six-month probationary period and attain permanent status before a certificate in the pension fund is issued. Once a certificate is issued in an employee's name, 5% of the employee's gross wages per pay period for the previous five months of employment are deposited in the pension fund. Upon completion of one year's service, all funds deposited on behalf of employees are 100% vested. The Town did not make any contributions during the fiscal year.

Withdrawals from the pension fund must meet the following criteria in accordance with Equitable Life Insurance policy:

- a. Termination of employment, or
- b. Unforeseen emergencies, i.e., medical, dental, death, accident or other types of emergencies

Employees may deposit funds from their paychecks, up to predetermined amounts or one-third of their annual wages, whichever is less. Employees may be authorized to withdraw these deposited funds for the specified reasons noted above. A written request to do so must be submitted to the Pension Board for its determination. Equity Life Insurance requires that a balance of \$300 remain in an account prior to any withdrawals and in order to have an active certificate.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

13. Firefighters' relief and pension fund:

The Volunteer Firefighters' Relief and Pension Fund (VFRPF) is a defined contribution plan to provide pensions to volunteer firefighters only. State statute requires that after a volunteer firefighter has 20 years of service, he or she is entitled to a monthly pension, the amount of which is determined by the board of trustees of the VFRPF, not to exceed \$150, as determined by the board of trustees. If an employee resigns before completing 20 years of service, he or she is entitled to a refund of his or her contributions only. He or she is not entitled to any part of the employer's contributions, the amounts received from the state or earnings on any of the contributions. Some monies were received from the State, however, no contributions were made by the employer or employees as funds were available to provide for future benefits.

14. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS):

The Town's Police Officers are covered by the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS). This plan is a component unit of the State of Arizona.

At June 30, 2015, the Town reported on the Statement Net Position and Statement of Activities the following aggregate amounts related to PSPRS:

	Governmental activities		
Net pension liability	\$	230,733	
Deferred outflows of resources		100,195	
Deferred inflows of resources		10,645	
Pension expense		43,128	

The Town reported \$71,044 of pension contributions as expenditures in the governmental funds related to PSPRS.

Plan description - Town Police Officers who are regularly assigned hazardous duty participate in the Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS). The PSPRS administers an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan and an agent multiple-employer defined benefit health insurance premium benefit (OPEB) plan (agent plans). A seven-member board known as the Board of Trustees and the participating local boards govern the PSPRS according to the provisions of A.R.S. Title 38, Chapter 5, Article 4. The PSPRS issues publicly available financial reports that include their financial statements and required supplementary information. The reports are available on the PSPRS website at www.psprs.com.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

14. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) (continued):

Benefits provided - The PSPRS provides retirement, health insurance premium supplement, disability, and survivor benefits. State statute establishes benefit terms. Retirement, disability, and survivor benefits are calculated on the basis of age, average monthly compensation, and service credit as follows:

	Initial member Before January 1, 2012	rship date: On or after January 1, 2012
Years of service and age required to receive benefit	20 years any age 15 years age 62	25 years age 52.5
Final average salary is based on	Highest 36 consecutive months of last 20 years	Highest 60 consecutive months of last 20 years
Benefit percent per year of service:		
Normal retirement	50% less 2.0% for each year of credited service less than 20 years OR plus 2.0% to 2.5% for each year of credited service over 20 years, not to exceed 80%	2.5% per year of credited service, not to exceed 80%
Accidental disability retirement	50% or normal retirement, whichev	ver is greater
Catastrophic disability retirement	90% for the first 60 months then re retirement, whichever is greater	educed to either 62.5% or normal
Ordinary disability retirement	Normal retirement calculated with a 20 years of credited service, which of credited service (not to exceed 2	never is greater, multiplied by years
Survivor benefit:		
Retired members	80% to 100% of retired member's	pension benefit
Active member	80% to 100% of accidental disabili average monthly compensation if or received on the job	ty retirement benefit or 100% of death was the result of injuries

Retirement and survivor benefits are subject to automatic cost-of-living adjustments based on excess investment earning. PSPRS also provides temporary disability benefits of 50% of the member's compensation for up to 12 months.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

14. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) (continued):

Employees covered by benefit terms - At June 30, 2015, the following employees were covered by the agent pension plan benefit terms:

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving	
benefits	0
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefits	0
Active employees	6
	6

Contributions and annual OPEB cost - State statutes establish the pension contribution requirements for active PSPRS employees. In accordance with state statutes, annual actuarial valuations determine employer contribution requirements for PSPRS pension and health insurance premium benefits. The combined active member and employer contribution rates are expected to finance the costs of benefits employees earn during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. Rates are a percentage of active members' annual covered payroll.

- For the year ended June 30, 2015, active PSPRS members were required to contribute 11.05% of the members' annual covered payroll and the Town was required to contribute 21.14%, the aggregate of which is the actuarially required amount. The health insurance premium portion of the contribution rate was actuarially set at 1.31% of covered payroll.
- The Town's contributions to the pension plan for the year ended June 30, 2015, were \$71,044, which included the required contributions for the health insurance premium benefit. During fiscal year 2015, the Town paid for the PSPRS pension and OPEB contributions from the General Fund.
- Pension liability At June 30, 2015, the Town reported net pension liability of \$230,733. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2014, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The total pension liability as of June 30, 2014, reflects the following changes of benefit terms and actuarial assumptions:
 - In February 2014, the Arizona Supreme Court affirmed a Superior Court ruling that a 2011 law that changed the mechanism for funding permanent benefit increases was unconstitutional. As a result, the plans changed benefit terms to reflect the prior mechanism for funding permanent benefit increases and revised actuarial assumptions to explicitly value future permanent benefit increases.
 - The wage growth actuarial assumption was decreased from 4.5 percent to 4.0 percent.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

14. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) (continued):

Pension expense and deferred outflows/inflows of resources - For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Town recognized pension expense for PSPRS of \$43,128. At June 30, 2015, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

	-01	Deferred utflows of esources	ir	Deferred offlows of esources
Differences between expected and actual experience	\$	17,528	\$	040
Changes in assumptions or other inputs		11,623		.н.
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on pension plan investments Contributions subsequent to the measurement date		- 71,044		10,645
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date	200		5	18/232
	\$	100,195	\$	10,645

The \$71,044 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to PSPRS pensions resulting from Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PSPRS pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

\$	1,211
	1,211
	1,211
	1,211
	3,872
-	9,790
<u>\$</u>	18,506
	\$

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

14. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) (continued):

Actuarial assumptions - The significant actuarial assumptions used to measure the total pension liability are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date	June 30, 2014
Actuarial cost method	Entry age normal
Investment rate of return	7.85%
Projected salary increases	4% - 8%
Inflation	4%
Permanent benefit increase	Included
Mortality rates	RP-2000 mortality table (adjusted by 105%
	for both males and females)

Actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation were based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the 5-year period ended June 30, 2011.

The long-term expected rate of return on PSPRS pension plan investments was determined to be 7.85% using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expenses and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class	Target Allocation	Long-term expected real rate of return
U.S. equity	16 %	7.60 %
Non-U.S. equity	14 %	8.63 %
Credit opportunities	13 %	8.00 %
Private equity	11 %	9.50 %
Real estate	11 %	6.50 %
GTAA	10 %	5.73 %
Real assets	8 %	5.96 %
Fixed income	7 %	4.75 %
Absolute return	4 %	6.75 %
Risk parity	4 %	6.04 %
Short-term investments	2 %	3.25 %
	100 %	

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

14. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) (continued):

Discount rate - The discount rate of 7.85% was used to measure the total pension liability. The projection of cash flows used to determine the PSPRS discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between the actuarially determined contribution rate and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Changes in the net pension liability -

		tal pension liability (a)	Plan fiduciary net position (b)		Net pension liability (a) - (b)	
Balances at June 30, 2014	\$	426,871	\$	191,583	<u>\$</u>	235,288
Changes for the year: Service cost Interest on the total pension liability		51,492 35,530		÷		51,492 35,530
Changes of benefit terms Differences between expected and actual experience in the		(1,914)				(1,914)
measurement of the pension liability Changes of assumptions or other		19,856		÷4		19,856
inputs		13,167		2		13,167
Contributions - employer		1.0		66,189		(66,189)
Contributions - employee		1		33,116		(33,116)
Net investment income		14		31,663		(31,663)
Other changes	_		-	(8,282)	-	8,282
Net changes	_	118,131		122,686		(4,555)
Balances at June 30, 2015	\$	545,002	<u>\$</u>	314,269	\$	230,733

Sensitivity of the Town's net pension liability to changes in the discount rate - The following table presents the Town's net pension liability calculated using the discount rate noted above, as well as what the Town's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (6.85%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.85%) than the current rate:

					6 increase (8.85%)	
Town's net pension liability	\$	309,188	\$	230,733	\$	165,111

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

14. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) (continued):

Pension plan fiduciary net position - Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued PSPRS financial report.

- Agent plan OPEB actuarial assumptions The health insurance premium benefit contribution requirements for the year ended June 30, 2015 were established by the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuations.
- Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the reported amounts' value and assumptions about the probability of events in the future. Amounts determined regarding the plans' funded status and the annual required contributions are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made. The required schedule of funding progress for the health insurance premium benefit presented as required supplementary information provides multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of the plans' assets are increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.
- Projections of benefits are based on (1) the plan as the Town and plans' members understand it and include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date, and (2) the pattern of sharing benefit costs between the Town and plans' members to that point. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets. The significant actuarial methods and assumptions used to establish the fiscal year 2015 contribution requirements are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date Actuarial cost method Amortization method Remaining amortization period

Asset valuation method

Investment rate of return Projected salary increases Wage growth June 30, 2013 Entry age normal Level percent closed 23 years for unfunded 20 years for overfunded 7-year smoothed market value 80%/120% market 7.85% 4.0% - 8.0% 4.0%

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

14. Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS) (continued):

Agent plan OPEB trend information - Annual OPEB cost information for the health insurance premium benefit for the current and 2 preceding years follows:

Year ending June 30	Ann	ual OPEB cost	Percentage of annual cost contributed	Net OPEB obligation		
2014	\$	4,013	100%	\$	-	
2013		3,356	100%			
2012		2,918	100%		-	

Agent plan OPEB funded status - The health insurance premium benefit plans' funded status as of the most recent valuation date, June 30, 2014, follow.

	i	Health nsurance
Actuarial accrued liability (b)	\$	26,399
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (b) - (a)	\$	26,399
Covered payroll (c)	\$	325,470
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability as a percentage of		
covered payroll ((b) - (a) / (c))		8 %

Required Supplementary Information

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

	A	udgeted mounts nal & Final		Actual	Fi	ariance with inal Budget Positive Negative)
Revenues:				OF FOC	æ	14 4145
Property taxes	\$	70,000	\$	65,586	\$	(4,414) (98,247)
Sales taxes		427,819		329,572		(1,367)
Franchise taxes		15,000		13,633 530,000		(1,307)
Landfill land lease		530,000		15,069		(431)
Licenses and permits		15,500		19,261		(160,739)
Intergovernmental		180,000		51,501		(92,399)
Charges for services		143,900		268,191		(60,809)
Fines and forfeits		329,000 224,304		306,541		82,237
State shared revenues Contributions and donations		2,000		3,616		1,616
Other		441,320		54,649		(386,671)
Total revenues		2,378,843		1,657,619		(721,224)
Expenditures:						
Current:		100 314		050 500		014.000
General government		867,558		652,566		214,992
Public safety		1,056,039		1,107,350		(51,311) 33,889
Culture and recreation		254,419		220,530		113,581
Capital outlay		210,000		96,419		113,301
Debt service:				64,632		(64,632)
Principal retirement		-		10,561		(10,561)
Interest and fiscal charges			-	- Yourthan		
Total expenditures	-	2,388,016		2,152,058		235,958
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures		(9,173)		(494,439)		(485,266)
Special item:						(15 00 A)
Unsupported credit card expenses			+	(15,204)	-	(15,204)
Net change in fund balances		(9,173)		(509,643)	_	(500,470)
Fund balances, beginning of year	_	~		(394,173)	-	(394,173)
Fund balances, end of year	\$	(9,173)	\$	(903,816)	\$	(894,643)

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS - AGENT RETIREMENT PLAN (PSPRS)

Reporting date (Measurement date)	_	2015 (2014)		2014 (2013)	_		2013 2012)			2012 2011)	_		2011 2010)			2010 2009)	_		009 008)	_	2008 (2007)	_		2007 2006)			2006 2005)	
Total pension liability	5					-								-														
Service cost	\$	and the second se	\$	~		\$	-		\$	-		S	-		Þ	-	5			\$			\$			S	-	
Interest		35,530											-						÷ .		-			1.1			•	
Benefit changes		(1,914)					•												× .		-						12	
Difference between expected and actual experience		19,856								- 2																		
Assumption changes		13,167								1.00									-					140				
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee contributions		,																										
Net change in total pension	-		-		-	-	-	-	-	-		-					-		_	-			-	_	-	-		_
liability		118,131					- 42																	1.0			-	
Total pension liability, beginning		426,871								1.1						- 4-			¥		-			-	-			
Total pension liability, ending (a)	\$	545,002	S		-	s			S		- 3 3	\$	-		\$	1.9	\$		÷.	\$	-		S	14		\$	~	
	_		_		_	_		_	-		_	-		_	-		_						-			-		-
Plan fiduciary net position Contributions - employer	S	66,189	S			s			s			s			s		s			S			\$			s		
Contributions - employee	÷	33,116	4			Ŷ			*			4	-		•											× .		
Pension plan net investment																												
income		31,663					•						-			•			•								•	
Benefit payments, including refunds of employee																												
contributions		10 0001								•			-						÷								•	
Other	_	(8,282)	-		-	-			-		-	-			-				-	-			-	•	-	-		_
Net change in fiduciary net position		122,686																										
Plan fiduciary net position,																												
beginning Plan fiduciary net position,	-	191,583	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-	-			-				-				-	-	-	-	-	
ending (b)	5	314,269	\$		_	5		_	S		_	\$		_	\$		\$		-	\$		_	\$		_	S	~	_
Net pension liability (asset), ending (a) - (b)	s	230,733	\$			\$			s			s		3	\$		s	8	¥.	\$			\$			s	÷	
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of total pension liability		57.66 %		ŝ.	%			0/2			%			%			%	2	0	6	4	%			%		2	%
Covered valuation payroll	s	325,470	s	1		s		14	s	1.2		s			s	1.2	s			s	-		S	-		\$	-	
	÷	020,470	4																							-		
Net pension liability as a percentage of covered valuation payroll		70.89 %			%			9%			0/2			0/6			0/0			6		%			%			%

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 (schedule to be built prospectively from 2014; 2013 - 2005 information not available)

49

SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 (schedule to be built prospectively from 2014; 2013 - 2005 information not available)

Reporting date (Measurement date)	Ģ	2015 (2014)		2014 (2013)	<u>.</u>	20 (20	13 12)		2012 (2011)			2011 (2010)			010 009)		2009 (2008))		2008 (2007)			2007	_		2006 2005)	<u></u> ,
Public Safety Personnel Retirement System (PSPRS)																											
Actuarially determined contribution Contributions in relation to the	\$	66,189	\$	4	1	s	•	\$	-		\$	•	\$		÷	\$	÷		\$	-		\$	1		\$		
actuarially determined contribution	_	66,189	_	- 7	_		•		-	_	_				-			-	_		_	_		_	_	<i>.</i> ••:	_
Contribution deficiency (excess)	s		s		_	\$	-	5	- 12	_	s			1	-	5	-	_	\$	-	_	s		_	s		20
Town's covered employee payroll		325,470					-					-			•		-			-						-	
Contributions as a percentage of covered employee payroll		20,34 %		÷	%		- 3	%		%			%	9	. 9	6	s.	%			%		÷	%		÷	%

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS - POST-RETIREMENT HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY -AGENT RETIREMENT PLAN (PSPRS)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Health Insurance Subsidy:

Valuation Date June 30	Val	uarial ue of sets	F	ctuarial Accrued	Funding Liability	Funded Ratio	Annual Covered Payroll	Unfunded Liability as % of Covered Payroll
2014	\$	0	\$	26,399	\$ 26,399	0 %	\$ 325,470	8.11 %
2013	4.	0		22,034	22,034	0 %	234,594	9.39 %
2012		0		18,551	18,551	0 %	249,717	7.43 %

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

1. Budgetary Basis of Accounting:

The Town prepares its annual budget on the modified accrual basis of accounting. Budgetary comparison schedules for the general fund and any major funds are included as required supplementary information to provide meaningful comparison of actual results to budget on a budget basis.

2. Pension plan schedules:

Actuarial determined contribution rates:

Actuarial determined contribution rates for PSPRS are calculated as of June 30 two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are made. The actuarial methods and assumptions used to establish the contribution requirements are as follows:

Actuarial valuation date	June 30, 2012
Actuarial cost method	Entry age normal
Remaining amortization period	24 years; if the actuarial value of assets exceeded the actuarial accrued liability, the excess was amortized over an open period of 20 years and applied as a credit to reduce the normal cost which otherwise would be payable.
Asset valuation method	7 year smoothed market; 20% corridor
Wage growth	5%
Price inflation	3% - 4% approximate; no explicit price inflation assumption is used in this valuation.
Salary increase	5% - 9% including inflation
Investment rate of return	8%, net of investment and administrative expenses
Retirement age	Experience-based table of rates that is specific to the type of eligibility condition. Last updated for the 2012 valuation pursuant to an experience study of the period July 1, 2006 - June 30, 2011.
Mortality	RP-2000 mortality table projected to 2015 using projection scale AA (adjusted by 105% for both males and females).
Assumed future permanent benefit increases	No explicit assumed permanent benefit increases assumption

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

2. Pension plan schedules (continued):

Factors that affect the identification of trends:

Beginning in fiscal year 2014, PSPRS established separate funds for pension benefits and health insurance premium benefits. Previously, the plan recorded both pension and health insurance premium contributions in the same Pension Fund. During fiscal year 2014, the plan transferred prior-year health insurance premium benefit contributions that exceeded benefit payments from the plan's Pension Fund to the new Health Insurance Fund.

Supplementary Information

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -BUDGET AND ACTUAL - NON-MAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

	Camp Naco Preservation					unity Development	Block Grant		Police Grants		His	ghway User Rever	nue	Gr	ant Opportunity Fi	bnd		Library Help Gran	nt	Eff	luent Recharge Pr	oject	Total		
	Budget	Actual	Varia Po	ance - sitive gative)	Budget	Actual	Variance - Positive (Negative)	Budget	Actual	Variance - Positive (Negative)	Budget	Actual	Variance - Positive (Negative)	Budget	Actual	Variance - Positive (Negative)	Budget	Actual	Variance - Positive (Negative)	Budget	Actual	Variance - Positive (Negative)	Budget	Actual	Variance - Positive (Negative)
Revenues: Intergovernmental	\$ 200,000	\$ 3,921	1 5 ((196,079)	s -	s -	s -	\$ 190,000	\$ 96,472	\$ (93,528)	\$ 130,633	\$ 131,082	\$ 449	\$ 100,000	\$ 7,290	\$ (92,710)	\$ 15,000	<u>s</u> -	\$ (15,000)	<u>s</u> -	<u>s</u> -	<u>s</u> .	\$ 635,633	\$ 238,765	\$ (396,868
Total revenues	200,000	3,921	1((196,079)	<u></u>	· · · ·	· · · · · ·	190,000	96,472	(93,528)	130,633	131,082	449	100,000	7,290	(92,710)	15,000		(15,000)	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	<u> </u>	635,633	238,765	(396,868)
Expenditures; Current:																and the									200
General government		1,288	В	(1,288)		1.4		÷	10.80	and the			*		6,226	(6,226)								7,514	(7,514
Public safety				(÷ 7		÷.			55,616	(55,616)			the state		- 7			S	-				81,460	55,616 95,262	(13,802)
Highway and streets					1.21			1			81,460	95,262	(13.802)	2		-	15,000		15,000				15,000	99,202	15,000
Culture and recreation	1. J. P. J.			1. C	-	E				110 100				100,000		100,000	15,000	-	15,000		5		490,000	40,203	449,797
Capital outlay	200,000		_	200,000		-		190,000	40,203	149,797					-										
Total expenditures	200,000	1,288	3	198,712	é			190,000	95,819	94,181	81,460	95,262	(13,802)	100,000	6,225	93,774	15,000	<u> </u>	15,000				586,460	198,595	387,865
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures		2,633	3	2,633		1		4	653	653	49,173	35,820	(13,353)		1,064	1,064	1	iani		30	÷.		49,173	40,170	(9,003
Other financing uses:																					419,844	419,844	- 2	479,779	479,779
Transfers in (out) Total other financing uses		59,935		59,935 59,935					- Ż		;						-				419,844	419,844		479,779	479,779
Special item: Undocumented credit card			_						(47)	(47)		(309)	(309)	<u> </u>	(818)	(818)		<u> </u>			<u> </u>	<u> </u>		(1,174)	(1,174
Net change in fund balances		62,568	8	62,568					606	606	49,173	35,511	(13,662)	· · · ·	246	246					419,844	419,844	49,173	518,775	469,602
Fund balances, beginning of year		(62,568	8)	(62,568)		3,483	3,483	1 1	35,997	35,997		474,113	474,113	-	(48,338)	(48,338)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	2,855	2,855		(419,844)	(419,844)		(14,302)	(14,302
Fund balances, end of year	s -	S -	\$	-	\$.	\$ 3,483	\$ 3,483	\$ -	\$ 36,603	\$ 36,603	\$ 49,173	\$ 509,624	\$ 460,451	5 -	\$ (48,092)	\$ (48,092)	\$.	\$ 2,855	\$ 2,855	5 -	s -	<u>s</u> -	\$ 49,173	\$ 504,473	\$ 455,300

Report on Internal Control and on Compliance



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Council Town of Huachuca City, Arizona

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 24, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Huachuca City, Arizona's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A *deficiency in internal control* exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A *material weakness* is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses to be material weaknesses. [2015-001, 2015-002, 2015-003, 2015-004].

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompany schedule of findings and responses to be significant deficiencies. [2015-005, 2015-006, 2015-007]

55

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town's financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under *Government Auditing Standards*.

Town of Huachuca City, Arizona's Response to Findings

The Town's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. The Town's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with *Government Auditing Standards* in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Beach Fleischman PC

Tucson, Arizona March 24, 2016

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

FINDINGS RELATED TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENTAL AUDITING STANDARDS

2015-001

Criteria:

The Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal control to ensure accurate financial reporting.

Condition / Context:

- The Town does not have a policy for review and documentation of approval of adjusting journal entries posted to the general ledger during the fiscal year and for year-end closing.
- Bank reconciliations contained errors and unreconciled differences.
- Significant balance sheet accounts were not reconciled on a timely basis.
- Significant adjustments, such as recording interfund transfers, were not prepared as part of the year-end closing.
- Transactions within the business-type funds are being recorded on the cash basis of accounting. These funds should be maintained on the full accrual basis of accounting. Incorrect recording of these transactions causes significant misstatements in capital assets and long-term liability accounts.
- Monthly financial reports are not created directly from the Town's accounting software; instead unreconciled account balances are exported and financial statements are thus created. Finance should produce financial statements directly from the general ledger.
- Monthly financial reports combine governmental activities and business-type activities, which are on different methods of accounting. Therefore, presenting these activities combined causes the reports to be difficult to understand and not effective for evaluating monthly operations.
- The Finance Director did not regularly present monthly financials at the Town Council meetings; therefore, significant variations from budget were not discussed and addressed timely.

Effect:

Insufficient oversight procedures resulted in misstatement of the interim financial statements.

Cause:

Limited staff size, limited available resources, and delegation of roles and responsibilities.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Recommendation:

The Town should strengthen and enforce its policies and procedures over the review of adjusting journal entries. Bank reconciliations should be prepared and reviewed, and any unreconciled variances should be investigated as part of the month-end close. Policies and procedures surrounding month-end and year-end close, including reconciliation and review of all significant accounts and recording of transfers between funds, should be put in place to ensure that the Mayor and members of the Town Council are receiving current, accurate information.

The Town should utilize and customize reports from their accounting system so that reports can be generated efficiently and directly from this software. Governmental and business-type activities should be presented separately. Further, to ensure the Major and Council are aware of the key financial information, the monthly financial reports should be presented by the Finance Director at the Council meetings.

This is a repeat finding from the prior year.

View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:

Bank reconciliations are being prepared monthly and outstanding items are listed as reconciling items. Interfund transfers recorded as an audit adjustments were the result of transactions that occurred in prior years. The Finance Director provided financial statements regulary to the board, some of the statements are provided from the accounting systems and others outside of the accounting system. The Finance Director will make arrangements to present the financial information to the Council either in person or telephonically.

2015-002

Criteria:

The Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal control and procedures over credit card purchases.

Condition / Context:

- Per review of the credit card policy outlined in the Town Code, we noted credit cards are authorized for the following users: Town Clerk/Administrator, Court Clerk, Accounting Clerk, and Mayor. However, during our testing of credit card transactions, we noted credit cards were issued to other Town employees.
- During our review of credit card transactions, we noted several instances of purchases made with Town credit cards that did not have sufficient supporting documentation.
- In addition to unsupported transactions, we noted purchases made with the Town credit cards that did not have adequate documentation on the receipts. According to the Town Code, "the purpose of the charge and the name of the individual involved must be clearly written on the receipt;" however, a significant number of transactions reviewed did not contain this documentation.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

 During our review of credit card transactions, we noted two instances where the Town credit card was used by an employee for non-business purposes. Only one of these instances was later reimbursemd by the employee.

Effect:

Insufficient oversight and record keeping over the credit card purchases can lead to unauthorized expenditures and inaccurate recognition and reporting of cash disbursements.

Cause:

Credit card policies and procedures adopted in the Town Code are not being adhered to.

Recommendation:

We recommend the Town adhere to the credit card policies and procedures adopted in the Town Code, including limiting credit cards to the approved authorized users and requiring adequate supporting documentation for all business purposes only.

View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:

The Town has issued five credit cards to the following: Town Clerk/Administrator, Mayor, police department, fire department, and landfill department. New credit card policies were created by the Town Clerk. Under the new policy, if another department needs to use the Town Clerk's credit card they must sign out the card and sign it back in with a copy of all receipts for purchases made.

2015-003

Criteria:

The Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal control and procedures over the payroll process.

Condition / Context:

- In our review of employee payroll transactions, we noted 4 personnel files did not contain accurate documentation of current approved wage rates. We also noted 21 part-time employees, paid by the Town during the year, did not have personnel files maintained by the Town.
- During our review, we noted that both the Town Clerk and Finance Clerk have the ability to make changes to pay rates and withholding rates in the payroll system, which leads to insufficient segregation of duties.
- In our review of employee payroll transactions, we noted employee time sheets are not consistently reviewed by their supervisor. In addition, some time sheets were approved by the employee using their supervisor's signature stamp.
- We further noted there is no independent review of payroll by the Finance Director prior to
 processing and that there were instances of salaries and benefits being recorded to the wrong
 general ledger accounts.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Effect:

Insufficient internal controls over the payroll processes could result in inaccurate recognition and reporting of payroll expenditures.

Cause:

Limited staff size, limited available resources, and delegation of roles and responsibilities

Recommendation:

We recommend the Town update its payroll procedures requiring documentation of approved wage rates in all personnel files, maintaining personnel files on all employees, limiting access to changing pay rates in the system, implementing a level of review by the Finance Director, designating alternative employees to approve time sheets when necessary so all time sheets can be approved timely, and preferably requiring actual signatures for time sheet approval.

This is a repeat finding from the prior year.

View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:

The Finance Clerk's access to change pay rates has been restricted and all personnel files have been updated. The Town Clerk is reviewing all timesheets and payroll registers. Salaries and benefits expenses are recorded based on allocations that were predetermined for each employee. Errors in how salaries and benefits were recorded were due to reclassification of employees between departments and not adjusting the allocations in the payroll module.

2015-004

Criteria:

The Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal control and procedures over capital assets.

Condition / Context:

We noted the Town is not adequately tracking capital asset additions, disposals and depreciation
expense causing the capital asset detail to be materially incorrect. The Town's capital asset
detail includes capital assets that are no longer owned by the Town and is missing capital
assets that are used in current operations.

Effect:

Insufficient monitoring and record keeping surrounding capital assets can lead to inaccurate recognition and reporting of such assets and can make the assets more susceptible to theft.

Cause:

Limited staff size, limited available resources, and delegation of roles and responsibilities.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Recommendation:

We recommend performing a physical inventory of all capital assets and reconciling it to the capital asset detail. We also recommend maintaining depreciation schedules for all capital assets to ensure that depreciation expense is calculated accurately each year. Further, capital purchases and disposals should be coded correctly in the system, according to the modified accrual basis of accounting for governmental funds and according to the full accrual basis of accounting for enterprise funds, at the time of purchase or disposal to minimize errors and to provide accurate monthly information to management, Mayor and Council.

View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:

The Town has purchased a bar code scanner in order to inventory and track the Town's capital assets. The Town now maintains accurate and complete records for capital assets and all assets listed on the capital asset detail can be physically observed.

2015-005

Criteria:

The Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal control and procedures over the cash receipts process.

Condition / Context:

- Cash receipts received by the library for fines and fees were not deposited into the Town's bank account or reported to the Finance Clerk for recording in the general ledger. Instead, these receipts were used to pay for library related expenses. As a result, revenue and expenses related to the library were not properly recorded.
- In our review of 27 cash receipts, we noted 1 of the receipts selected for testing did not have evidence of the Town Clerk's review on the deposit slip. Review of the deposit slip is necessary to ensure that all of the cash receipts were deposited.
- In our review of 27 cash receipt transactions, 2 of the receipts did not have supporting documentation, such as the invoice or a copy of the receipt on file. Supporting documentation is necessary to ensure that cash receipts are recorded accurately.
- The Town does not have a process in place to monitor the agings and collectibility of outstanding receivables. As a result, receivables reported in the monthly financial statements were overstated.

Effect:

Insufficient segregation of duties surrounding the cash receipt process can lead to inaccurate recognition and reporting of cash receipts.

Cause:

Limited staff size, limited available resources, and delegation of roles and responsibilities.

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Recommendation:

We recommend the Town Clerk continue to review deposits for accuracy and completeness. We further recommend the Town develop policies and procedures to retain documentation for all cash receipts and file them in a systematic manner. In addition, we recommend that cash receipts records maintained by other departments be reconciled to the general ledger to ensure the accuracy and completeness of the Town's cash receipts.

This is a repeat finding from the prior year.

View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:

The Town has a limited staff size and has segregated duties as much as possible given its size. Whenever the Town Clerk was not available to perform a review of the deposits, another employee performed this task to esure the accuracy and compleness of deposits. New personnel at the library were not aware of the policies and procedures for cash receipts and disbursements. The proper procedures for cash receipts and disbursements. The proper procedures for cash receipts and disbursements have been communicated to the library and will be followed moving forward.

2015-006

Criteria:

The Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal control and procedures over the cash disbursements process.

Condition / Context:

- Purchase orders were not prepared and approved prior to purchases being made.
- During our review of cash disbursement transactions, we noted several transactions were recorded to an incorrect general ledger account.

Effect:

Insufficient segregation of duties surrounding the cash disbursements process can lead to inaccurate recognition and reporting of cash disbursements.

Cause:

Limited staff size, limited available resources, and delegation of roles and responsibilities.

Recommendation:

We recommend the Town include review procedures over the cash disbursements process, so that all expenses recorded can be reviewed for proper coding to general ledger accounts. Further, we recommend that purchase orders be prepared and approved prior to purchases being made.

This is a repeat finding from the prior year.

View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: Officials from the Town have responded to this comment in previous reports and continue to work on

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

making improvements.

2015-007

Criteria:

The Town is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal control and procedures over the investment of public monies by the Town.

Condition / Context:

 During our testing of investments, we noted the Town holds equity securities, which is not an approved investment type in the Procurement and Investment Policies adopted in the Town Code.

Effect:

Investments made outside the Town's investment policy could expose the Town to additional risks.

Cause:

Investment policies and procedures adopted in the Town Code are not being adhered to.

Recommendation:

We recommend the Town adhere to the investment policies and procedures adopted in the Town Code, including investing the Town's funds in the approved investment types.

View of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:

The Town plans to transfer these equity securities to an investment type approved in the Town Code.